IN THE UNI TED STATES DI STRI CT COURT
FOR THE EASTERN DI STRI CT OF PENNSYLVAN A
EMLY F. DAVIS, : ClVIL ACTI ON
Plaintiff, : 97- CV- 7475
V. :
LEVY, ANGSTREI CH, FI NNEY,
BALDANTE, RUBENSTEI N & COREN, P.C.
JOHN BALDANTE, ESQ and
STEVEN E. ANGSTREI CH, ESQ

Def endant s.

VEMORANDUM AND ORDER

JOYNER, J. Oct ober , 1998
Plaintiff, Emly F. Davis, brought this action agai nst

Def endants, John Bal dante and Steven E. Angstreich, and the |aw

firmof Levy, Angstreich, Finney, Bal dante, Rubenstein & Coren,

P.C. Counts I, Il and IV allege that Defendant law firm

termnated Plaintiff's enploynent in violation of the Amrericans

Wth Disabilities Act (ADA), 42 U.S.C. 8§ 12101, et. seq., the

Pennsyl vani a Human Rel ations Act (PHRA), 43 P.S. 8§ 951, et. seq.,

and the Enpl oyee Retirenment Incone Security Act (ERI SA), 29

US C 88 1132(e), 1140, respectively. Count |11 alleges that

Def endants Angstreich and Bal dante ai ded and abetted the

di scrimnatory practices of the enployer law firmin violation of

the PHRA. Defendants Bal dante and Angstrei ch now nove to dism ss

Count |1l pursuant to Fed. R GCv. P. 12(b)(6), and the defendant

law firmnoves for a nore definite statenent of Count |V pursuant

to Fed. R Cv. P. 12(e). For the follow ng reasons, both
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nmoti ons are deni ed.

Backagr ound

According to the conplaint, Plaintiff was enpl oyed as an
associ ate attorney by Levy, Angstreich, Finney, Bal dante,
Rubenstein & Coren, P.C. ("the law firnt), from Novenber 27, 1995
to April 26, 1996. Prior to commencing her enploynment with the
law firm M. Davis was di agnosed as havi ng nmani ¢ depression
She did not, however, informdefendants of this diagnosis when
she was hired.

On April 15, 1996, the defendant |law firm placed Plaintiff
on sixty days' probation for poor work performance, but assured
her that no adverse action woul d be taken agai nst her prior to
expiration of the probationary period. One week into the
probationary period, Plaintiff spoke privately w th Defendant
Angstreich, a partner in the defendant law firm to discuss the
firmis short and long termdisability policies. Plaintiff did
not disclose her nedical condition at that tinme. On April 24,
1996, Plaintiff was questioned extensively by Defendant Bal dante,
also a partner in the Defendant |aw firm about her basis for
requesting information on the disability policy. It was at this
time that Plaintiff advised Bal dante of her manic depression, and
al so suggested that it may have been contributing to her poor
work performance. Plaintiff also made certain work accommodati on
requests to Bal dante that would enable her to cope with her
condi ti on.

The follow ng day, Baldante infornmed Plaintiff that her
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enpl oynent was term nated effective i nmedi ately due to poor work
performance and notw t hstandi ng the fact that her sixty day
probationary period had yet to expire. Plaintiff alleges that
after Defendants | earned of her disability, they engaged in a
systemati c and conti nuous pattern of discrimnation, with the
intent of depriving her of her enploynent.

Standards for Fed.R Civ.P. 12(b)(6) Motions

In reviewing a notion to dismss for failure to state a
cl ai mupon which relief can be granted under Fed.R G v.P.
12(b) (6), the Court nust accept as true the facts alleged in the
conpl aint and all reasonable inferences that can be drawn after
construing themin the light nost favorable to the non-novant.

Pearson v. MIller, 988 F. Supp. 848, 852 (MD. Pa. 1997)(citing

Jordan v. Fox, Rothschild, OBrien, and Frankel, Inc., 20 F.3d

1250, 1261 (3d Cir. 1994)). Dismssal is limted to those
instances where it is certain that no relief could be granted

under any set of facts that could be proved. Al exander v.

Wi tman, 114 F.3d 1392, 1398 (3d Cir. 1997).

Di scussi on

A. Mbtion to Dismiss Count IIl of Plaintiff's Compl ai nt

By this notion, Defendants ask the Court to dismss
Count 111 for failure to state a PHRA cl ai mupon which relief can
be granted agai nst Defendants Bal dante and Angstreich given that
their acts represent the acts of the firm and therefore they
cannot be viewed as aiding and abetting a PHRA viol ation.
Like Title VII, 42 U S.C. 82000e, et. seq., and the
Arericans with Disabilities Act, 42 U S.C. 812111, et. seq.,



8955(a) of the PHRA, 43 P.S., renders it unlawful for an enpl oyer
to di scharge an enpl oyee because of a non-job rel ated handi cap,

anong ot her things. Kohn v. Lemmon Co., 1998 W. 67540, *8

(E.D.Pa. 1998), (citing Dici v. Pennsylvania, 91 F.3d 542, 552

(3d Gr. 1996). Under 43 P.S. 8§ 955(e), however, the state
statute goes a step further by forbidding:

“...[a] ny person, enployer, enploynent agency, | abor

organi zati on or enployee, to aid, abet, incite, conpel or
coerce the doing of any act declared by this section to be
an unl awful discrimnatory practice, or to obstruct or
prevent any person from conplying with the provisions of
this act or any order issued thereunder, or to attenpt,
directly or indirectly, to conmt any act declared by this
section to be an unlawful discrimnatory practice.”

Id.; dickstein v. Neshaminy Sch. Dist., 1997 W. 660636, *11

(E.D. Pa. 1997).
In this manner, 8955(e) of the PHRA differs fromTitle VII,
(which holds only enployers liable for discrimnation while

exenpting individual enployees fromliability). See Generally:

Sheridan v. E.I.Dupont de Nenmpurs and Co., 100 F.3d 1061 (3rd

Cir. 1996); Dici v. Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, 91 F.3d 542,

552 (3rd Cir. 1996). Thus, even notw thstanding that the PHRA is
generally applied in accordance with Title VII, in the
appropriate factual scenario, an individual supervisory enployee
can be held liable under an aiding and abetting/acconplice
liability theory pursuant to 8955(e) for his own direct acts of
discrimnation or for his failure to take action to prevent
further discrimnation by an enpl oyee under supervision. Dci,

supra, at 552-53 (3d Gr. 1996); Frye v. Robinson Alarm Co., 1998




W 57519, *3 (E.D.Pa. 1998); Smth v. Pathmark Stores, Inc., 1998

W. 309916, *3 (E. D.Pa. 1998); Kohn v. Lemmon Co., supra, at *8;

Wen v. Sun Conpany, Inc., 1997 W 772810,*7 (E.D. Pa. 1997);
dickstein, supra., at *12. See Also: Tyson v. CIGNA Corp., 918

F. Supp. 836, 841 (D.N.J. 1996).

I n application of the foregoing principles to the defendants’
notion to dismss, we find that plaintiff’s conplaint avers that
Angstreich and Bal dante were partners in the professional
corporation when Plaintiff held the position of associate
attorney and that they “aided, abetted, incited, conpelled and
coerced unlawful and intentional discrimnation against Plaintiff
based on her disability in direct violation of... the
Pennsyl vani a Human Rel ations Act.” (Pl.'s Conpl. {s 8-10, 31-
32). Plaintiff has also alleged that she spoke with and was
guesti oned extensively by both defendants Bal dante and Angstreich
regarding the firms short and long termdisability policies and
that it was Bal dante to whom she reveal ed her medi cal condition
requested that certain accomodati ons be nade and who
subsequently term nated her

It is generally recognized that the difference between the
rights, duties, and conpensati on of associates and partners in a
law firm are significant, in that the role of partner is
general ly deened to be supervisory and as havi ng greater

responsibilities. Gahamv. State Farm Auto. Ins. Co., 1992 W

334024, *5 (E.D. Pa. 1992)(citing Harrison v. Association Corp.

of NN Am, 917 F.2d 195, 198 (5th Gr. 1990). Al t hough the | aw
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firmis alleged to be a professional corporation which
technically woul d have sharehol ders, rather than partners, we are
m ndful of the requirenment that plaintiff’s pleadings be read in
the |ight nost favorable to the plaintiff as the non-noving

party. See: Markowitz v. Northeast Land Co., 906 F.2d 100, 103

(3rd Gr. 1990). We therefore find that Plaintiff has adequately
pl ed that Angstreich and Bal dante are supervisors for purposes of
PHRA liability and that they aided and abetted the firmin

unl awful 'y discrimnating agai nst her on the basis of her manic
depr essi on.

B. Def endants' Motion for a More Definite Statenent

Def endants next assert that Count IV is vague and anbi guous
as witten, and Plaintiff should be ordered to provide a nore
definite statement, pursuant to Fed. R CGv.P. 12(e).

Under Fed. R CGiv.P. 8(a)(2), the Plaintiff is required to
pl ead a short and plain statenent sufficient to give adequate

notice of the claimto the Defendant. Foul k v. Donjon Marine

Co., Inc., 1998 W. 231084 (3d Cir. 1998)(citing Conley v. G bson,

355 U.S. 41 (1957). Under Rule 12(e), if a pleading is so vague
or anbi guous that the responding party could not reasonably be
required to frame a responsive pleading, they may nove for a nore
definite statement of the claimbefore submtting a response.

Murray v. Gencorp, Inc., 979 F. Supp. 1045, 1050 (E.D. Pa. 1997).

In Count IV of the conplaint, the Plaintiff pled two
vi ol ati ons of the Enployee Retirenent |Inconme Security Act

(ERISA), 29 U S.C § 1132, et. seq., for: (1) termnating the
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Plaintiff’s enploynent in retaliation for exercising her rights
to collect disability; and (2) termnation of Plaintiff’s health
i nsurance coverage. (Pl.’s Conpl. s 34-41.) 1In reading the
conplaint inits entirety, this Court is satisfied that
Plaintiff’s pleading is sufficient to enable Defendants to
prepare a response. Therefore, the defendants' notion for a nore
definite statement will be deni ed.

An order foll ows.



IN THE UNI TED STATES DI STRI CT COURT
FOR THE EASTERN DI STRI CT OF PENNSYLVAN A

EM LY F. DAVIS : ClVIL ACTI ON

Pl aintiff :

VS.
NO. 97-CV-7475

LEVY, ANGSTREI CH, FI NNEY,
BALDANTE, RUBENSTEI N & :
COREN, P.C., JOHN BALDANTE :
ESQUI RE, and STEVEN E. :
ANGSTREI CH, ESQUI RE

Def endant s
ORDER
AND NOW this day of Cctober, 1998, upon
consi derati on of Defendants’ Mdtions to Dismss Count |IIl and for

a More Definite Statenment of Count IV of Plaintiff’s Conplaint,
it is hereby ORDERED that the Mtions are DEN ED for the reasons

set forth in the precedi ng Menorandum Qpi ni on.

BY THE COURT:

J. CURTIS JOYNER, J.



